Public Document Pack

Agenda for a meeting of the Governance and Audit
Committee to be held on Thursday, 17 September 2020
at 10.00 am in Remote Meeting
Members of the Committee – Councillors
LABOUR

CONSERVATIVE

Johnson
Thornton
Watson

Pollard

LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND
INDEPENDENT GROUP
Stubbs

Alternates:
LABOUR

CONSERVATIVE

Godwin
M Slater
Azam

Ellis

LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND
INDEPENDENT GROUP
Reid

Notes:
 Please note that, under the current circumstances only Members and Alternates on the
Committee will receive paper copies of the agenda, however the agenda and reports can
be viewed on the Council’s agenda and minutes website five clear working days in advance
of the meeting.
 The meeting will be held remotely, Members and officers in advance of the meeting
will be sent via email, instructions and a link on how to join the meeting remotely.
 A webcast of the meeting will be available to view live on the Council’s website at
https://bradford.public-i.tv/core/portal/home and later as a recording.
 Approximately 30 minutes before the start time of the meeting the Governance Officer will
set up the electronic conference arrangements initially in private and bring into the
conference facility the Members and officers so that any issues can be raised before the
start of the meeting. The officers presenting the reports at the meeting will have been
advised by the Governance Officer of their participation and will be brought into the
electronic meeting at the appropriate time. Members should be on their own when attending
remotely and ensure that any confidential papers are not visible via the technology used.


Any Councillors or members of the public who wish to make a contribution at the meeting
are asked to email adrian.tumber@bradford.gov.uk by 10.30 am on Tuesday 15 September 2020
and request to do so. In advance of the meeting those requesting to participate will be advised if their
proposed contribution can be facilitated and those participants that can be will be provided with
details how to electronically access the meeting. Councillors and members of the public with queries
regarding making representations to the meeting please email Adrian Tumber.
From:
To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Adrian Tumber
Phone: 07970 412150
E-Mail: adrian.tumber@bradford.gov.uk

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1.

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)
The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

2.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
Notes:

3.

(1)

Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set
out in the Code of Conduct. Disclosable pecuniary interests
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2)

Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(3)

Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4)

Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper

should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.
(Adrian Tumber - 07970 412150)
B. BUSINESS ITEMS
4.

COUNCIL MEETINGS CORONAVIRUS GOVERNANCE REVIEW UPDATE
The report of the City Solicitor (Document “H”) presents an update on
delivering meetings in the democratic decision making structure
following the meeting of Full Council held on 8 September 2020.
Recommended –
That the report be noted.
(Adrian Tumber – 07970 412150)

5.

CORPORATE INVESTIGATIONS UNIT - ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION

1 - 14

The purpose of the report of the Director of Finance and IT (Document
“I”) is to present the annual performance information, as required by
the Committee, and to provide assurance that the Council’s counter
fraud arrangements are effective.
Recommended –
That the Committee notes the performance information contained
within this report.
(Tracey Banfield / Harry Singh - 01274 434794/437256)
6.

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
The report of the Director of Finance and IT (Document “J”) reviews the
service Internal Audit has provided to the Council during the financial year
2019/20.

Recommended –
That the Committee recognises and supports the work carried out
by Internal Audit during 2019/20.
(Mark St Romaine – 01274 432888)

15 - 38

7.

MINUTES OF THE WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND (WYPF)
LOCAL PENSION BOARD MEETINGS HELD ON 24 MARCH 2020
AND 23 JUNE 2020

39 - 58

The role of the Pension Board, as defined by sections 5(1) and (2) of
the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 is to assist the Council as
Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance
and administration of the LGPS.
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (the Council), as Scheme
Manager, as defined under section 4 of the Public Service Pensions
Act 2013, has delegated legal and strategic responsibility for West
Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) to the Governance and Audit
Committee.
The minutes of the WYPF Pension Board meeting are submitted to this
Committee (Document “K”).
Recommended –
The minutes of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Pension Board
meetings held on 24 March 2020 and 23 June 2020 be considered.
(Caroline Blackburn - 01274 434523)
THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

Agenda Item 4/

Report of the City Solicitor to the meeting of the
Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 17
September 2020

H
Subject:
Council Meetings Coronavirus Governance Review Update

Summary statement:
A report was presented to the meeting of this Committee on 20 August 2020
presenting an overview of delivering meetings in the democratic decision making
structure since the beginning of the Coronavirus period when Government
regulations and guidance meant that meetings could not be held physically in a
meeting room and the introduction of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 permitted meetings to take place
remotely. Since then this authority has held its first meeting of full Council on 8
September 2020 and this report considers the delivery of that meeting.

Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor

Portfolio:
Corporate

Report Contact: Adrian Tumber
Phone: 07970 412150
E-mail: adrian.tumber@bradford.gov.uk

1.

Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Corporate

SUMMARY

Page 1

A report was presented to the meeting of this Committee on 20 August 2020
presenting an overview of delivering meetings in the democratic decision making
structure since the beginning of the Coronavirus period when Government
regulations and guidance meant that meetings could not be held physically in a
meeting room and the introduction of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 permitted meetings to take place
remotely. Since then this authority has held its first meeting of full Council on 8
September 2020 and this report considers the delivery of that meeting. Figures
have also been received from Public-i the company that this Council works with to
provide meetings remotely on the number of occasions the remote meetings are
being viewed.
This report is being considered by the Governance and Audit Committee due to its
role in overseeing the governance framework of the Council.
2.

BACKGROUND

.

On 16 March 2020 the Government announced that it was bringing in measures in
response to the global COVID-19 pandemic stating that everyone should avoid
gatherings. This meant that it was no longer possible to hold the Council’s
democratic decision making committees/panels physically in meeting rooms. The
Government announcement was followed by the publication of the Local Authorities
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police
and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 enabling
meetings to be held remotely. The Council’s IT Services worked with Public-i so
that a means of delivering meetings remotely was procured and the Council’s Legal
and Democratic Services drafted protocols ensuring that the remote meetings
would be held lawfully.

3.

EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

3.1

Since the Coronavirus period began this Council has held its first full Council
meeting. It was an Extraordinary meeting of Council to consider the resolution of
the Executive on the consultation undertaken on West Yorkshire Devolution. The
Executive resolved that the report of the Chief Executive should be referred to full
Council for comment and endorsement.

3.2

All 90 councillors are members of Council so along with the officers supporting the
meeting from the Council’s Democratic Services and IT Services and from Public-i
meant that in total there were 98 either participating or those supporting on the
remote meeting platform. This number is far in excess of any other remote meeting
the Council has delivered to date.

3.3

The delivery of the remote Extraordinary meeting of Council necessitated
considerable preparation. This included a preparatory session for the Lord Mayor;
two preparatory sessions for all Members of Council and individual support
provided for Members by the Council’s IT Service.

Page 2

3.4

A feature of the Extraordinary meeting of Council was the first use by this Council of
electronic voting. In a meeting of Council held physically in the Council Chamber at
City Hall voting is undertaken by a show of hands (unless a recorded vote is
undertaken). Undertaking a vote in a remote meeting cannot be undertaken by a
show of hands as only the Lord Mayor and whoever is speaking at the time are
visible to those viewing the meeting online to protect bandwidth. There is also only
a maximum of 25 people that can be seen on the screen at the same time so not all
Members could be observed in a vote undertaken by a show of hands. Officers
supporting the meeting are able to monitor the electronic voting to ensure that it is
working correctly.

3.5

The Council’s IT Service provided exemplary support to Members in the preparation
for the Extraordinary meeting of Council supporting councillors with any connectivity
issues both before and during the meeting.
ACCESS DATA FOR HOLDING MEETINGS REMOTELY

4.1

As requested at the last meeting of this Committee Public-i does hold data on both
those who are viewing live streams as committee/panel meetings are taking place
and those who view the archive recordings of those meetings.
A representative snapshot is the data for the four week period ending 24 August
2020 as follows:
Date of
meeting
30 July
30 July
4 August
5 August
11 August
18 August
20 August
20 August

Committee/Panel
West Yorkshire Pension Fund Joint
Advisory Group
Bradford South Area Committee
Bradford District Licensing Panel
Children’s Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Regeneration and Environment
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Health and Social Care Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
Governance and Audit Committee
Regulatory and Appeals Committee

Live
Viewing
12

Archive
Viewing
41

Total
53

5
4
19

28
14
16

33
18
35

6

18

24

19

8

27

15
76

12
20

27
96

4.2

Although comparative data on attendance by the public at meetings held physically
at City Hall has not been routinely compiled what is clear is that the public are
accessing meetings in the Council’s decision making structure in larger numbers
through the meetings being held remotely. Please note that the figures do not
include any member of the public who was attending a meeting as a participant.

5.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
There are no financial issues arising from this report.

Page 3

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
The risk of physically holding meetings in a meeting room is being continuously
assessed during this period in accordance with Government regulations and
guidance. Government guidance is in place for the safe use of Council buildings.
When meetings are delivered remotely the governance is undertaken in accordance
with the statutory arrangements in place. Governance, for example, must ensure
that the meeting is quorate, and that there is decision making clarity with councillors
having heard the full debate on a matter before voting, so that all councillors have
made their decision on the basis of the same facts and representations.

7.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020 permits the Council to hold meetings remotely so long as
Members can be heard, and where practicable seen, by other Members and the
public attending the meeting. Government guidance is that meetings should be
held remotely at the present time. Any move to holding physical meetings would
have to be carefully assessed taking into account regulations, guidance, and the
public sector equality duty.

8.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

8.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Holding meetings remotely does have the advantage of making the Council’s
democratic decision making more accessible and transparent for many residents,
including those with a disability who would find it challenging attending a meeting in
a physical location. There are currently equalities issues in holding meetings
physically as Coronavirus is known to disproportionately affect the elderly, some
ethnic groups, some disabled groups and men.

8.2

TRADE UNION
None.

8.3

WARD IMPLICATIONS
All Wards.

8.4

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
Meetings of the Corporate Parenting Panel are being delivered remotely.

8.5

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
None.

Page 4

9.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

10.

OPTIONS

10.1

The report can be noted and further reports requested.

11.

RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1

That the report be noted and further updates be scheduled in the Committee’s
work programme.

12.

APPENDICES
None

13.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5/

Report of the Director of Finance & IT to the meeting of
the Governance & Audit Committee to be held on 17th
September 2020

I
Subject:
Corporate Investigations Unit – annual performance information

Summary statement:
The purpose of this report is to:
Present the annual performance information, as required by the Committee and to provide
assurance that the Council’s counter fraud arrangements are effective.

Chris Chapman
Director of Finance & IT

Portfolio:
Leader of the Council & Corporate

Report Contact: Tracey Banfield /
Harry Singh
Phone: (01274) 434794/437256
E-mail: tracey.banfield@bradford.gov.uk
harry.singh@bradford.gov.uk

1
Page 7

1.

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to present the annual performance information, as required by
the Committee and to provide assurance that the Council’s counter fraud arrangements are
effective.
2.

BACKGROUND

In common with other public bodies the Council has a duty to protect the public purse and this
report details the role of the Corporate Investigation Unit (CIU) in the prevention and
detection of fraud. The work of the CIU underpins the Council’s commitment to a zero
tolerance approach to fraud, theft, corruption (including bribery), or any other financial
irregularity committed against the Council.
This report represents performance information for the financial year 1st April 2019 to 31st
March 2020.
3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1
Fraud is the most commonly experienced crime in the UK. The latest fraud and corruption
tracker summary report 2019 from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy
(CIPFA) contains the most recent government sanctioned estimates, suggesting that fraud
costs the public sector at least £40.3bn annually, of which £7.8bn is specifically in local
government. Therefore fraud remains a constant financial threat to Local Authorities.
The Council’s Corporate Investigation Unit is responsible for the investigation of allegations of
fraud, theft, corruption or any other allegations of a financial nature, perpetrated against the
Council, whether by citizens of the district, Council employees or other third parties.
The CIU comprises of 7 staff who are accredited with a Counter Fraud Specialist qualification
and who ensure that all investigations carried out are in accordance with the relevant
legislation and, where evidence of fraud, theft, corruption or any other financial irregularity is
found, that the appropriate sanction is applied, in accordance with the Council’s Sanctions
Policy which has been previously approved by this Committee.
The CIU is responsible for leading on any preventative work including fraud awareness
training for all Council employees, a mandatory e-learning delivered as part of the induction
for new employees and bi-annually for existing employees. The Council’s internal and
external website pages provide additional information on how to report suspicions of fraud.

2
Page 8

3.2

Referral to the CIU for investigation
Chart 1 - Referrals received - last 3 financial years

500
450
400
350
300
250

473

200

369

368

17/18

18/19

150
100
50
0
19/20

Chart 1a- Referrals received by source - 2019/20

6%

16%

8%

31%

27%
12%

3
Page 9

Internal Staff (74)
DWP Joint Workng (37)
Anonymous External (129)
Fraud Hotline (59)
Parking Services (147)
External (eg Police/ RSL) (27)

3.3 Investigation
Chart 2 - Investigations carried out - last 3 financial years
300
250
200
150
100

285
218

206

17/18

18/19

50
0
19/20

Chart 3 - Investigations where Fraud, Theft or other Financial Irregularity found - last 3
financial years
250
200
150
234
100

181

173

17/18

18/19

50
0
19/20

A survey of Local Authorities, referred to in the latest CIPFA fraud and corruption tracker Summary Report 2019 suggests that the 4 main areas of fraud (by volume) local authorities
are tackling are Council Tax, Disabled Parking (Blue Badge), Social Housing Tenancy Fraud
and Business Rates.
Appendix 1 contains charts (2a and 3a), broken down by fraud type, which demonstrate that
the areas of fraud Bradford CIU are tackling follow a similar national pattern.

4
Page 10

For the 3rd year in a row procurement fraud was highlighted in the CIPFA report as the
highest fraud risk area to councils as services are constantly being procured. Fraud can take
place at any point in the procurement chain, making it difficult to both detect and measure
especially once a contract has been awarded. Some large value infrastructure and
regeneration projects, often outsourced, mean that when procurement fraud does occur the
sums can be significant.
Additionally, a report with the findings of a review into the risks of fraud and corruption in local
government procurement, carried out by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government was released in June 2020*. The report made a number of recommendations
including improving the understanding of risks in procurement, Council departments working
together to take action against perpetrators, to build an anti-fraud and corruption culture and
to ensure data quality and record keeping is secure but readily accessible.
*Link to the full report is provided at section 12 of this document.
As it is recognised that very few referrals are received in relation to procurement fraud and, in
order to minimise any risk to the Council, the CIU has responded to the recommendations in
the report by organising “procurement fraud awareness” workshops for all procurement
professionals across the Council and ensuring that open lines of communication are available
for any procurement fraud concerns to be reported. In addition, in conjunction with Internal
Audit the CIU aims to ensure that robust procedures are in place to minimise any risk.
3.3.1 Summary of investigation outcomes
A concluded investigation will normally result in one of two outcomes – either evidence has or
has not been found to support a finding of fraud, theft, corruption and /or other financial
irregularity.
Where evidence has been found then, in accordance with the Committee approved Council’s
Sanctions policy, the appropriate sanction will normally be applied and attempts made to
recover any financial loss.
In 2019/20 82% of cases investigated uncovered evidence to support a finding of fraud, theft,
corruption and /or other financial irregularity and this is comparable to the previous two
financial years.

5
Page 11

Chart 4 – Investigations resulting in a prosecution or other sanction - last 3 financial years
180

164

160
140

125

125

120
100

Prosecutions
Other Sanctions

80
60
40

34

27

21

20
0
17/18

18/19

19/20

In 2019/20 of those 234 cases where evidence was found to support a finding of fraud, theft,
corruption and /or other financial irregularity 84% (198 cases) resulted in a prosecution or
another sanction. This represents an increase of 26% over the two previous years and the
majority of this increase is, as demonstrated in chart 4a below, due to an increased number
of proactive Blue Badge “action days” carried out in 2019/20.

Chart 4a - Prosecutions and Sanctions by type 2019/20

2

11

36
2
Social Care / Direct Payments
Revenues Related
Blue Badge
Social Housing Tenancy
Theft / Theft Related

147

6
Page 12

3.4 Working in partnership
3.4.1 Internal partners


Neighbourhood and Customer Services
In addition to carrying out reactive investigations in response to referrals received the
CIU also carry out investigations proactively, for example, the CIU work with Parking
Services Officers on Disabled Persons Blue Badge “action days”. These action days
are to ensure that badges are being used correctly and are a tool to obtain intelligence
on persistent misuse, for responding to citizen complaints of misuse and targeting of
hotspots where misuse/abuse is known to take place.
During 2019/20, 16 “action days” took place, where up to 800 badges on display were
examined and verified and 30 CIU investigations into misuse/abuse were launched.



The Council’s Legal Services team - a key partner in the Council’s counter fraud
approach providing specialist advice, support and services to the CIU, ensuring
compliance with all relevant legislation pertaining to the prevention, detection and
investigation of fraud, corruption and theft (for example the Police and Criminal
Evidence Act 1984, Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996, Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000, Data Protection Act 2018 the General Data Protection
Regulations, Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 and Fraud Act 2006)

3.4.2 External partners


The Department for Work and Pensions (Counter Fraud, Compliance & Debt
Service) – The CIU work with the DWP to jointly combat fraud in Housing Benefit and
Bradford Council’s Council Tax Reduction scheme (CTR).
In 2019/20 – 33 cases were investigated jointly, resulting in 2 “alternative to
prosecution” sanctions and 9 prosecutions where the sentences imposed by the
Courts included fines, curfews, unpaid work orders, community supervision orders and
a suspended imprisonment. There are a further 6 cases where prosecution action has
been agreed and the cases are awaiting a court hearing date.



West Yorkshire Joint Services on Financial Investigation (POCA) cases Financial investigation is an investigative discipline concerned with forensically
analysing the finances that relate to criminal activity. It is an important tool for the
disruption of serious and organised crime. The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA) is
the primary legislation used in financial Investigation and was created with the aim of
removing assets from criminals, recovering the proceeds of crime and deterring and
disrupting criminality. It confers a range of investigative powers as well as powers to
restrain and confiscate criminal assets, via criminal confiscation, civil recovery, cash
forfeiture and criminal taxation.
Where an investigation into fraud, corruption, theft or other financial irregularity is
considered to be likely to result in a conviction, the CIU will refer all suitable cases to
West Yorkshire Joint Services for financial investigation (normally, but not limited to,
those cases where the estimated loss is £5,000 or more) with a view to recovering
monies, or property, obtained as a result of criminal activity or criminal lifestyle.

7
Page 13

In 2019/20 the CIU referred 4 new investigations to West Yorkshire Joint Services. The
allegations of fraud being investigated are estimated to have caused a combined total
loss of £82,000 and are allegations in relation to Adult Social Care direct payments,
Council grant fraud and theft. The CIU aim to finalise the investigations during the
2020/21 financial year and outcomes will be reported in the next annual Committee
report.


Registered Social Landlords - To protect valuable housing stock the CIU has
developed professional relationships with a number of Bradford’s registered social
landlords where the CIU provide specialist investigative resource in relation to
allegations of tenancy fraud including subletting, succession or any other forms of
tenancy breaches.
In 2019/20 24 cases of tenancy related frauds were investigated and 2 properties were
recovered and returned for rightful occupation.

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

According to the latest CIPFA Fraud and Corruption tracker survey, the estimated value of
fraud detected and prevented by Local Authorities is £253m per year, an average of £3,600
per case detected or prevented.
During 2019/20, the value of fraud detected and prevented by the CIU amounted to in excess
of £619,000 and this equates to an average of £2,645 per case detected or prevented (i.e.
lower than the average for all Local Authorities). This demonstrates that the effective action
the CIU take to detect or prevent instances of fraud, theft, corruption or other financial
irregularity, minimises the loss to both the public purse and/or the Council.
Of the total £619,000 fraud detected and prevented £538,000 was actual recoverable
financial loss and the remaining a notional loss* from recovering properties, subject to
tenancy fraud and preventing the misuse and abuse of Disabled Persons Parking (Blue
Badge).
*National Fraud Authority notional loss £18,000 per annum per property relating to Social Housing Tenancy Fraud and National Fraud
Authority notional loss £575 relating to Disabled Persons Parking Misuse

8
Page 14

Chart 5 - Financial loss identified by type - 2019/20
£36,000 £2,106 £7,305

£52,737
Social Care (actual)
Revenues Related (actual)
Blue Badge (notional)
Grants (actual)
Social Housing Tenancy (notional)
Theft / Theft Related (actual)

£45,425

£476,322

**See appendix 2 for loss identified in two previous financial years

Additionally in 2019/20 the Council received; £105,784 as part of the confiscation and compensation orders, awarded under the
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, relating to 4 financial investigations carried out by the
CIU and West Yorkshire Joint Services, into benefit, council tax and mortgage fraud;
money laundering and fraudulent misuse of funds. This constitutes full and final
payment for 2 of the investigations and further payments, relating to the remaining 2
investigations, are still being actively pursued with the aim of recouping in full in
2020/21.
 Reimbursement of investigation and/or legal costs, awarded to the Council by the
Courts in prosecution cases, totalling £8,920.
5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

There are no significant risks arising.
6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

There are no legal issues arising from the contents of this Report.
In addition to its specific enforcement powers under numerous statutory provisions the
Council has a general power under section 222 Local Government Act 1972 to bring legal
proceedings before the Court where the “Local Authority considers it expedient for the
promotion or protection of the interests of the inhabitants of their area.
Prosecution proceedings will only be issued after having due regard to the CPS Code of
9
Page 15

Practice and the Council’s Sanctions policy. As such prosecution proceedings will only be
issued where there is sufficient and admissible evidence to provide a realistic prospect of
conviction and where the prosecution is in the public interest.
The Code of Practice requires the decision to prosecute to be kept under continuous review,
so that any new facts or circumstances, in support of or undermining the Council’s case, are
taken into account in the Council’s decision to continue or terminate the proceedings.
7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY

There are no equality and diversity implications
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no sustainability implications
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
None
7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The reduction of all crime, including fraud, corruption and /or theft, contributes to improving
community safety.
7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The Council’s current counter fraud approach complies with the Human Rights Act, in
particular in relation to surveillance and the right to privacy. All surveillance operations are
required to be formally approved in compliance with the Regulation of Investigatory Powers
Act 2000 and Council protocols. However, there were no surveillance applications requested
during 2019/20.
7.6

TRADE UNION

There are no trade union issues arising from the contents of this Report.
7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS

Counter fraud information is available by ward area, excluding employee investigations, if
required.
7.8

AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)

10
Page 16

N/A
7.9

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING

N/A
7.10

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

None
8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

None
9.
N/A

OPTIONS

10.
RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee notes the performance information contained within this report.
11.

APPENDICES
1. Additional charts - breakdown of investigations by type
2. Additional charts - breakdown of financial loss in 2017/18 and 2018/19

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

CIPFA fraud and corruption tracker
MHCLG – Local Government procurement fraud and corruption risk review

11
Page 17

Appendix 1 – Additional charts and breakdown of investigations
Chart 2a - Investigations carried out by type - last 3 financial years
180
160
140
120
100
17/18
18/19
19/20

80
60
40
20
0
Social Care /
Direct
Payments

Revenues
Related

Blue Badge

Grants

Social
Housing
Tenancy

Procurement Theft / Theft
Related

Chart 3a – Investigations by type where Fraud, Theft or Financial Irregularity found - last 3 financial
years
160
140
120
100
80

17/18
18/19
19/20

60
40
20
0
Social Care / Revenues
Direct
Related
Payments

Blue Badge

Grants

Social
Housing
Tenancy

12
Page 18

ProcurementTheft / Theft
Related

Definitions of the different types of fraud








Social Care / Direct Payments - misappropriation of funds or financial irregularity in
relation to care packages provided by the Council
Revenues Related – failure to declare correct circumstances to claim Single Person
Discount (25% reduction on Council Tax liability), failure to provide correct details in
relation to Council Tax Support scheme or any other benefits, discounts or reliefs
Blue Badge – Abuse/misuse of disabled persons blue badge; using lost or stolen
badges, counterfeit badges, badge holder absent or deceased.
Grants – False applications or misappropriation of funds in relation to grant funding
paid by Council
Social Housing Tenancy Fraud – Illegal subletting or succession frauds, right to buy
applications or key selling
Procurement – Failure to follow procedure, distorting fair and open competition,
collusion between bidders or collusion with contractors
Theft or theft related – Theft of cash or Council property or assets for resale or
personal use

13
Page 19

Appendix 2
Financial Loss identified by type 2017/18
£0.00

£52,455

£54,000
£195,924

Social Care (actual)
Revenues Related (actual)
Blue Badge (notional)
Grants (actual)
Social Housing Tenancy (notional)
Theft / Theft Related (actual)

£3,056.00

£32,200

Financial Loss identified by type 2018/19
£17,866 £0.00

£0.00

£54,000
Social Care (actual)
Revenues Related (actual)

£23,575

Blue Badge (notional)
Grants (actual)
Social Housing Tenancy (notional)
Theft / Theft Related (actual)
£367,616

14
Page 20

Agenda Item 6/

Report of the Director of Finance and IT to the meeting of the
Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 17 September
2020.

J
Subject:
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Summary statement:
This report reviews the service Internal Audit has provided to the Council during the
financial year 2019/20.

Chris Chapman
Director of Finance and IT

Portfolio
Corporate

Report Contact: Mark St Romaine

Improvement Area:

Phone: (01274) 432888
E-mail: mark.stromaine@bradford.gov.uk

Corporate

Page 21

1.

SUMMARY –

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Governance and Audit
Committee (GAC) about the service Internal Audit has provided to the Council
during the financial year 2019/20.
In particular Members are advised of the following:

Internal Audit completed 93% of the 2019/20 audit plan which, was above the
target of 90%.



Internal Audit’s Client satisfaction identified that 93% of the respondents said
that the “recommendations were useful and realistic” and believed that the audit
was “of benefit to management.”



100% of all high priority recommendations made from the work undertaken
were accepted by management.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

Internal Audit is part of the Department of Corporate Resources.

2.2

The Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 is contained within Appendix 1.

3.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

3.1

Not Applicable.

4.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

4.1

There are no other considerations.

5.

OPTIONS

5.1

Not applicable

6.

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL

Page 22

6.1

There are no direct financial consequences arising from this report. The work of
Internal Audit adds value to the Council by providing management with an
assessment on the effectiveness of internal control systems, making, where
appropriate, recommendations that if implemented will reduce risk.

7.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

7.1

The work undertaken within Internal Audit is primarily concerned with examining
risks within various systems of the Council and making recommendations to
mitigate those risks. Consideration was given to the corporate risk register when
the Audit Plan for 2019/20 was drawn up and any issues on the risk register that
relate to an individual audit are included within the scope of the assignment.

7.2

The key risks examined in our audits are discussed with management at the start
of the audit and the action required from our recommendations is verified as
implemented by Strategic Directors.

8.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

8.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations for 2015 require the Council to undertake an
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing
standards or guidance. The Council achieves this by complying with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017, which it does by following the
CIPFA Local Government Application Note.

8.2

Standard 2450 of the PSIAS requires the Head of internal Audit to deliver an
annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by the organisation to
inform its governance statement. The annual internal audit opinion must conclude
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisations framework of
governance, risk management and control. The annual report must also include a
statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit standards and the
results of the quality assurance and improvement programme. This requirement is
met by the attached (Appendix 1) Internal Audit Annual Report for 2019/20.

8.3

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to undertake at least
annually “a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal audit”. The outcome
of this review has been included in the Internal Audit Annual Report as well as
being part of the evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement.

9.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Equality & Diversity
Internal Audit seeks assurance that the Council fulfils its responsibilities in
accordance with its statutory responsibilities and its own internal guidelines. When
carrying out its work Internal Audit reviews the delivery of services to ensure that
they are provided in accordance with the formal decision making process of the
Council.

9.2

Sustainability Implications

Page 23

When reviewing Council Business Internal Audit examines the sustainability of the
activity and ensures that mechanisms are in place so that services are provided
within the resources available.
9.3

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts
There are no impacts on Gas Emissions.

9.4

Community Safety Implications
There are no direct community safety implications.

9.5

Human Rights Act
There are no direct Human Rights Act implications.

9.6

Trade Union
There are no implications for the Trade Unions arising from the report.

9.7

Ward Implications
Internal Audit will undertake specific audits through the year which will ensure that
the decisions of council are properly carried out.

9.8

Implications for Corporate Parenting
None

9.9

Issues Arising from Privacy Impact Assessment
None

10.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

10.1

None.

11.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee recognises and supports the work carried out by Internal Audit
during 2019/20.

12.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20.

13.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

13.1

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

13.2

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017.

Page 24

13.3

The CIPFA Local Government Application Note for the United Kingdom Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards 2019 Edition.

13.4

GAC report 18 April 2019 – Internal Audit Plan 2019/20.

13.5

GAC report 28 November 2019 - Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 Monitoring Report
as at 30 September 2019.

Page 25

APPENDIX 1

INTERNAL AUDIT
ANNUAL REPORT
2019/20

ASSURANCE

ADDED VALUE

ADVICE

CONSULTANCY

DEPARTMENT OF CORPORATE RESOURCES

Page 26

INTRODUCTION
The aim of this report is to provide information on the activities of Internal Audit during the
financial year 2019/20 and to support the Council’s Annual Governance Statement by
providing an “Audit Opinion” on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
internal control environment, its governance processes and risk management systems.
It is not the intention of this report to attempt to give a detailed summary of each audit
assignment but to provide a summary of the overall audit activity identifying, whenever
appropriate, significant outcomes from the audit work.
The completion and presentation of the Annual Report to Governance and Audit Committee
has been completed under the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS).

Mark St Romaine
Head of Internal Audit, Insurance and Risk
August 2020

Circulation:Members
Chris Chapman
Joanne Hyde
Senior Management
Cameron Waddell
All Staff

Governance & Audit Committee
Director of Finance and IT
Strategic Director Corporate Resources
Council Management Team
Director and Engagement Lead, Mazars
Internal Audit

Page 27

INTERNAL AUDIT

1

INTERNAL AUDIT’S RESPONSIBILITIES AND RELATIONSHIPS

1.1

Governance and Audit Committee (GAC)
The Member responsibility for Internal Audit rests primarily with the GAC.
During the year the following reports were presented to Committee:
Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19 (GAC 31st July 2019)

Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 (GAC 18th April 2019)

Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 Monitoring Report as at 30 September 2019.(GAC 28th
Nov 2019)
The Committee strengthens the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements as well
as bringing together the review agencies of both Internal and External Audit to one
Member forum.

1.2

Staffing & Resources
In total 2,505 audit days (9.6 FTE) were available in 2019/20, compared with 2,276 days
(8.7 FTE) available in 2018/19. The net increase was due to the full year effect of
recruiting four Senior Auditors (3.35FTE) in August 2018, the reduction in working hours
of one Senior Auditor effective from 1.4.19 (0.4FTE) and the transfer of one member of
staff to Financial Services (1FTE).

1.3

External Audit
In November 2012 Mazars formally commenced its role as the Council’s External
Auditors. Work has continued between Internal and External Audit to establish an
effective working relationship and develop a framework for co-operation in the planning,
conduct and reporting of work.
The 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan was shared with External Audit.

1.4

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
Since 1st April 2013 the Council has been required to comply with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). These were revised in 2017 and in January 2019 the
Governance and Audit Committee approved the Council’s Internal Audit Charter which
had been revised to be fully compliant with these standards. The Internal Audit Charter
details the purpose, authority and responsibility of Internal Audit with the supporting
code of ethics. It details how Internal Audit activity should be completed and how the
service should be managed. It links Internal Audit activity with risk management. It also
determines reporting arrangements, the management of consultancy engagements and
the quality assessment process.

2.

SERVICE DELIVERY

2.1

Audit Resources and Coverage
The original audit plan for 2019/20 was approved by GAC on 18 April 2019 and was
based on 2,505 days of audit resources. The Internal Audit Monitoring Report
presented to GAC on 28 November 2019 noted that after taking into account insurance
management, its audit provision to West Yorkshire Pension Fund, Bradford Council
would receive circa 1,881 audit days in 2019/20. 1,913 days were actually delivered.

Page 28

INTERNAL AUDIT

The audit plan was also monitored by assignments completed during the year.
Completion of 90% or more of the plan is a positive indicator of the effectiveness of
Internal Audit. In 2019/20, Internal Audit achieved 93% of the original plan.
2.2

Reports Issued and Control Environment
All Internal Audit assignments result in an Audit Report which identifies the audit
coverage, findings from the audit, risks arising from identified control weaknesses and
prioritised audit recommendations. In 2019/20 (and 2018/19) a total of 61 reports were
issued
The reports issued in 2019/20 recorded that the percentage of controls satisfied was
71%, a decrease of 2% on the 73% satisfied in 2018/19, and is 3% below the five year
average of 74% of controls satisfied. This year on year fall in the percentage of controls
satisfied, whilst slight, is of concern as it is an indicator that the control environment
may be deteriorating over time. As in 2018/19 the service continued to focus on and
require responses only in relation to high priority recommendations. 100% of these
recommendations were accepted by management.
Chart One below, shows the total number of audits by type and sections 2.3 onwards
explain in more detail the audit coverage and some of the issues arising from the work
undertaken during the year. A listing of audit reports issued in 2019/20 by audit type is
shown in Appendix A.
Chart One: Showing the Breakdown of Total Reports Produced in 2018/19 and
2019/20 by Audit Type

Chart One also shows that in comparison to 2018/19 there was a decrease of 7 and 4
in the respective numbers of follow up and significant systems reports issued in
2019/20. The decrease in follow up report numbers in 2019/20 was due to process
changes introduced in the year, which reduces the need for individual follow up audits
to be done (see 2.8 for more details). The comparative decrease in significant systems
Page 29

INTERNAL AUDIT

report numbers is partly due to risk management reports, previously included within
significant systems, being separately shown as a report type.
These comparative decreases in follow up and significant systems reports in 2019/20
were offset by comparative compensating increases in report numbers across all other
audit types. Of note, West Yorkshire Pension Fund report numbers increased by 5 in
2019/20 and there were two Computer Audit reports issued in 2019/20 by Salford
Council, the Council’s new computer audit provider (see 2.10 for more details).
Chart Two, below, shows that, from the evaluation of risks and controls in 2019/20, 77%
of the systems examined had either an ‘excellent’ or ‘good’ audit opinion, which was
almost the same as in 2018/19 (76%). The ‘good’ opinion remained the most dominant
opinion in 2019/20 at 42%. It is pleasing to note that in 2019/20 there were no audit
reports issued with a ‘no assurance’ audit opinion, although there was a ‘no assurance’
report issued in draft to a school in late March 2020 that was not agreed until July 2020
due to Covid 19. This is an improvement on 2018/19, where three reports (6%) had a
no assurance opinion.
Chart Two: Breakdown of Audit Opinions 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2020

The analysis above relates to those reports with opinions. In 2019/20 52 (85%) out of
61 issued reports had an audit opinion, which was marginally less than the 54 (89%)
out of 61 issued reports in 2018/19.
Opinions are derived from an analysis of the level of control effectiveness in managing
the reviewed risks and the number of high priority recommendations within a report.
Where reports are produced that do not relate to the planned evaluation of risks and
controls, for example in response to requests for advice on specific matters, or in
response to known control failures there is often no opinion applied to the report.

Page 30

INTERNAL AUDIT

2.3

Fundamental Systems
Fundamental financial systems are those that are material to the Council and have a
significant impact on the Council’s internal control systems and the Council’s accounts.
The review of these systems provides assurance relating to the main systems operating
within the Council and remains a significant part of the audit plan. In 2019/20 11
fundamental systems reports were issued. This was a slight increase on the 10 reports
issued in 2018/19.
There was three partially effective opinions relating to Accounts Receivable
Enforcement Refunds & Write offs, Requisitioning, Ordering & Receipting and
Flexitime/Time recording Council Wide. Of the remaining 8 fundamental system audits,
3 had ‘Excellent’, 2 had ‘Good’ audit opinions and 3 had no opinions.
The Accounts Receivable Enforcement Refunds and Write Offs audit gave a partially
effective opinion due to blocks/markers used inappropriately on Customer records
preventing invoices being highlighted for recovery action; a significant number of
customer accounts had credit balances that required actioning; there was inadequate
assurance that an appropriate process existed on URB workflow to enable appropriate
recovery action to take place for all outstanding invoices on SAP which required
intervention beyond issuing standard reminder letters; inadequate assurance that all
written off debts are appropriately authorised.

2.4

Audit Grant and Certification Work
Certain grants received by the Council require an Internal Audit certification to confirm
that the expenditure in the previous financial year i.e. 2018/19 was made in accordance
with the Grant Determination Letter from the funding body. The number of grants
requiring Audit certification in 2019/20 was 11 with a total of 14 reports issued in respect
of these. Seven Highways related capital grants, the Disabled Facilities Capital Grant
and the Bus Subsidy Revenue Grant all received ‘Excellent’ opinions.
Troubled Families Grant certification generated 4 reports during the year. Claim audits
continue to identify ongoing issues of data quality, necessitating the withdrawal of
ineligible cases, albeit small in number. Internal Audit supported the Families First Team
to make more regular payment by results claims during the financial year.
The Primary PE and Sports Grant was tested at a sample of schools, which established
that monies were being spent in accordance with grant objectives and no significant
concerns were identified, however, some schools continue to publish insufficient details
of grant expenditure and its impact, thereby not complying absolutely with grant
conditions.

2.5

Significant Systems
Internal Audit produced 6 reports relating to significant systems of the Council during
2019/20. Significant systems coverage is varied and unique in some cases, and can
often result from concerns raised by management.
Examples of the work carried out on significant systems in 2019/20 are shown below:
The audit review of Deferred Payment for Care gave a ‘partially effective’ audit opinion
and raised 6 high priority recommendations. The audit identified several key concerns
including: a significant number of properties on which Deferred Payment Agreements
(DPAs) are based for which the Council does not appear to have a legal charge;
Page 31

INTERNAL AUDIT

properties on which a DPA is secured do not have an annual valuation, therefore the
available equity may be incorrect and insufficient to cover the deferred payment debt;
no system is in place to ensure all properties on which deferred payments are given are
insured; best practice guidance to review the DPA when there is 6 months' equity
remaining is not being followed; the debt recovery processes are not robust; and there
are service users who may have been incorrectly invoiced due to configuration
problems with the ContrOCC system.
The Controcc Financial Management System Post Implementation Review in Children’s
Services gave a partially effective opinion due to concerns that: staff may have
inappropriate system access; incorrect care packages and payments are being created,
due in part to a lack of training; duplicate payments can occur; the provider portal is not
yet operational for carers to use; there is a lack of management information available.
The audit review of Car Parking gave a ‘good’ audit opinion and raised two high priority
recommendations. The report highlighted concerns to management that the details of
why penalty charge notices are marked as spoiled are not properly recorded and early
payment discounted payments were accepted after the eligibility deadline without
management approval or recorded justification.
The audit of the Partnership Governance also resulted in a good audit opinion and
raised one high priority recommendation. The audit highlighted to management the
concerns that the risk management arrangements for the Health & Wellbeing Board's
responsibility as lead strategic partner for delivery of the District Plan, (and from April
2020, the Health and Wellbeing Strategy) are inadequate; and there are no
arrangements in place for identifying significant partnerships which work alongside the
Council, resulting in a lack of scrutiny and oversight of these partnerships by the Health
and Wellbeing Board.
2.6

Value Added
Internal Audit, where possible, adds value in the work that it undertakes. The following
is a sample of instances during 2019/20 where value has been added.

Audit Work

ContrOCC Financial
Management System

Deferred Payment for
Care

Brief Explanation of Savings Identified or Value
Added
Following ContrOCC becoming operational within
Children’s Services in May 2018, this inaugural audit
review, which was high level and focused on its use by
the Through Care service, adds value by highlighting to
management areas where the system was found to be
working as expected and those that are of concern to
Internal Audit. The implementation of the 7 high priority
recommendations made in this report, which gave a
partially effective opinion, will improve the standard of
control operating within and over the ContrOCC System
and LCS on which it depends.
Internal Audit reviewed the systems and processes
involved in a service user choosing to defer payment of
their residential care costs based on the equity in their
property.

Page 32

INTERNAL AUDIT

Between October 2019 and January 2020, Internal Audit
provided training to 117 Heads, Governors and financial
staff from 64 of the district’s schools. The purpose of the
training was to support schools with their responsibilities
for fulfilling Department for Education (DfE) requirements
relating to the Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS).
Annual completion of the SFVS process in schools
provides internal assurance that they are practicing good
financial management, which contributes to the
optimisation of the use of resources, to support highquality teaching and the best outcomes for pupils.
SFVS Training

Investigation of
anonymous written
allegations at a
Primary School
2.7

It was the case that from 1st April 2019, a new SFVS
scheme was introduced nationally by the DfE to all
maintained schools (including those in Bradford), which
comprised an increased and more demanding list of
questions and also an additional requirement to
complete a complex dashboard of numerical, statistical
and financial information.
This training gave those attending the best possible
opportunity of obtaining a better understanding of the
objectives of the DFE’s SFVS scheme and producing
good quality SFVS returns.
Anonymous written allegations made to Internal Audit
against a primary school Headteacher relating to
financial mis-management were investigated, and a
report was issued to inform the school’s governing body.

Significant Concerns
There were two significant areas of concern raised in the last year. Whilst the final
report was not issued until 2020/21 due to Covid 19, the draft report issued in 2019/20
to Ley Top Primary school gave an ineffective opinion due to general non compliance
with financial rules and governance requirements.
The second area of concern raised was a critical recommendation that concerned the
failure of a software supplier to deliver for two years, an effective direct debit facility for
the trade waste service.
Both these issues will be reviewed in the 2020/21 financial year to identify if any
progress had been made to remedy the weakness.

2.8

Follow Up
During 2019/20 the way in which Internal Audit recommendations are followed up was
revised.
Under the revised method the intention was that recommendations would be followed
up quarterly by the auditor making the recommendation. This approach commenced in
October 2019. Having the author of the original report carry out the follow up work was
useful, as intended, as it enabled difficulties in implementation to be identified and
discussed, and it also allowed for revision of recommendations and removal of obsolete
Page 33

INTERNAL AUDIT

recommendations as appropriate. However the initial follow up took longer than
intended particularly obtaining an accurate position on some of the older
recommendations. As a result the process did not continue on the original timetable
and was then suspended due to the pandemic. It is anticipated that once it
recommences it will be possible to carry out at least two follow up processes each year
as the age and number of recommendations to be followed up will be lower.
2.9

Schools
a) School Audits
Final reports were issued to seven schools which were visited and full school audits
completed as part of the 2019/20 plan. Schools are included in the audit plan based on
a risk score, and by default these schools tend to be those which are already
experiencing issues and would benefit most from audit input. Overall control
effectiveness was rated at three schools as “Good” and at the other four as “Partially
Effective.” Recommendations for improved financial practices were made at all these
schools. In addition to the above seven audits finalised, full audits were undertaken and
draft reports were issued just before the financial year end at two further schools but
agreement of final reports was interrupted by the effect of coronavirus. Overall control
effectiveness at these two schools was rated at “Ineffective” and “Good” in the draft
reports issued.
Internal Audit also published its newsletter “In Control” to all schools via Bradford
Schools Online in autumn 2019, giving advice and assistance on relevant issues and
included sections on procurement in schools, increasing awareness of cyber crime and
comprehensive details of the requirement changes to the DfE’s School Financial Value
Scheme, effective from April 2019 and which needed to be considered before the
March 2020 return deadline.
b) Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS)
All maintained schools, excluding those falling within listed exceptions, are required to
complete and submit to the Council, an SFVS self assessment form by the 31st March
each year. This annual review of relevant financial management practices provides
schools with internal assurance that resources are being used to support high-quality
teaching and the best outcomes for pupils, in addition to the external assurance
provided to the Council from the school’s SFVS governance activity. The Council is
then required to submit an Assurance Statement signed by the Section 151 Officer to
the DfE before the 31st May, detailing the number of returns received from schools and
the number of those who had not complied by the March deadline.
As the 2019/20 financial year end approached, SFVS requirements changed; in early
April 2020, as the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic developed, the DfE announced that
the assurance statement would not be required from Council Section 151 officers; and
also gave discretion to Councils on requiring schools to supply SFVS returns for the
2019/20 financial year.
However, it was the case that at the 31st March deadline, 83 from 102 maintained
schools (81%) had supplied a return to the Council (78 from 90 expected, and 5 from 12
unexpected, due to applicable exceptions). From a brief initial analysis of the 2019/20
returns, Internal Audit was pleased to note that 65 (78%) showed evidence of approval
by the governing body. Further analysis is planned to assess the quality of the content
of the approved returns. 12 returns from 90 expected had not been returned by the
deadline and there were no plans to pursue these for the time being.
Page 34

INTERNAL AUDIT

c) Sixth Form Funding Assurance
Internal Audit provided a high level assurance piece of work in relation to sixth form
funding totalling £8m, to enable the funding assurance statement to be signed off by the
Council’s Section 151 officer and be returned to the DfE.
2.10

Computer Audit
In the first half of 2019/20 Salford Council, who provide Computer Audit Services for a
number of Councils and organisations in the North West, completed an Audit Needs
assessment of Bradford’s ICT functionality. The Computer Audit, Physical Environment
and Security gave a partially effective audit opinion with the most significant concerns
being in relation to fire prevention controls and the volume of staff with access to
servers.

2.11

Risk Management
Three Internal Audit reports were issued in 2019/20, one on the Corporate Risk
Management process, the second on the risk management of the Strategic Risk Adults
Safeguarding Incident and the third on risk management arrangements operating within
the Corporate Resources Department.. All three reports determined that the control
environment was good.

2.12

Governance
The internal audit assessment of governance is supported by the annual review
undertaken by the Director of Finance as S151 Officer. In conducting the review,
reliance was placed upon six main sources of evidence:






The Constitution of the Council
The adequacy of management actions in relation to key risks as identified in the
corporate risk register
Evidence from the regular monitoring and reporting to the Executive and Scrutiny
Committees on performance, risk and finance issues
Key Control and fraud risk self assessments supporting written confirmation from
Strategic Directors that all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure
compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations
The reports of Internal Audit
External Audit and other external inspection agencies

Overall as reported in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement the Governance
Procedures were determined as effective. An audit review of partnership governance in
the Office of the Chief Executive gave a good opinion.
2.13

West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF)
During 2019/20, Internal Audit carried out a variety of audits within WYPF. These
included:

Page 35

INTERNAL AUDIT



UK and Overseas Private Equities – Control of this asset class was found to be of
a good standard, however, recommendations were made to further enhance control
in this area of activity.



Transfer of Data – A pensions administration service is provided for a significant
number of Fire and Rescue Authorities, Lincolnshire Pension Fund and London
Borough of Hounslow Pension Fund. This audit was a high level review of the
management processes which support the transfer of external data into the
Universal Pensions Management system, when a new outside client is established
under a shared service agreement. The standard of control in this area was
deemed to be partially effective and resulted in a number of recommendations to
improve the level of control in the process.



Admission of New Bodies – This audit covered the admission of new employer
bodies to the West Yorkshire Pension Fund and the standard of control was found
to be excellent.



New Pensions and Lump Sums Normal and Early Retirements – This audit
examined the calculation of the annual pension and the lump sum following a
member’s decision to retire. The standard of control in this process was found to be
good, with one recommendation for improvement being made.



Review of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund 2018/19 Accounts – This is an
annual account review process, that ensures the final account is consistent with
internal control reviews carried out by the Internal Audit Team during the year.



Annual Benefit Statements – All active and deferred members of West Yorkshire
Pension Fund receive an Annual Benefit Statement, this provides a number of
pension details which demonstrate the value of their current benefits calculated
from information provided by the member’s employer on their monthly returns. No
issues were identified during the course of this audit.



Equities – Since November 2019, all quoted investments are now held under the
custody of the Northern Trust Bank (previously HSBC), and represent a significant
proportion of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund investment portfolio, the annual
audit review of this asset class found the process to be well controlled.



Treasury Management – This audit reviewed the arrangements in place for
Treasury Management, to ensure that surplus cash is invested in the most
appropriate ways. Controls in this area were found to be excellent.



UK Fixed and Index Linked Public and Corporate Bonds – Investment in this
asset class at the time of the audit was approximately 13% of the of the total
investment portfolio. The control environment for this asset class was deemed to
be excellent with no issues identified.



UK and Overseas Unit Trusts (Property and Other) – Approximately 4.3% of the
West Yorkshire Pension Fund investment portfolio is held in property unit trusts.
The control environment surrounding the UK Property Unit Trusts was deemed to
be largely as expected with one recommendation for improvement being made.



Accuracy of Contributions Recorded on Member Records - WYPF changed
a monthly contributions postings process several years ago with the aim
simplification, systems integration, increased data accuracy and complete up
date member's records. This audit, aimed to provide assurance on the accuracy
Page 36

to
of
to
of

INTERNAL AUDIT

the contributions and other data recorded on member records, which had been
received from contributing bodies. A number of issues were identified during the
course of this audit which have resulted in recommendations being made to ensure
that records are as accurate as possible going forward.

2.14



Information Governance and General Data Protection Regulation – This audit
reviewed the arrangements in place to ensure compliance with the General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) introduced in May 2018. Controls to ensure
compliance with the GDPR were found to be of a good standard, however, a
number of recommendations were made to further enhance this process and
maintain compliance.



Transfers In - This work looked at individuals who had built up previous pension
benefits in their former employments and now wished to amalgamate them with
their new West Yorkshire Pension Fund contributions. The standard of control in
this area was found to be of a good standard with two minor recommendations for
improvement.

Changes to the 2019/20 Plan
During the financial year some of the audits in the original plan were not performed. As
in previous years this was due to factors such as implementation delays, or the
availability of service staff, but also Internal Audit capacity constraints. In some cases
work had been covered by an alternative. Audits were also completed that were not in
the original plan due to assurance requirements from management.
Details of the audits that were added or deleted from the 2019/20 Audit Plan over and
above those that were reported in the Internal Audit Monitoring Report presented to
GAC on 28 November 2019 is shown in Appendix B. Where an audit was removed from
the Plan a reason has been given as to why this was. Appendix B also shows 2019/20
planned audits that were ongoing as at 31.3.20.

2.15

Non Audit Work Performed
During the year Internal Audit has performed some non-audit work in relation to the coordination of the writing of the Annual Governance Statement. The Head of Internal
Audit and Insurance had during the year responsibilities for Insurance, Risk
Management and Information Governance arrangements. In May 2019 the Head of
Internal Audit was no longer responsible for the Information Governance Team.
The Head of Internal Audit is not involved in audits where he has existing or has
previously held operational responsibility.
If an audit is undertaken of Risk
Management or Insurance the reports are reviewed by an Audit Manager and reported
directly to the Director of Finance to avoid a conflict of interest.

2.16 Internal Audit’s Performance Indicators
a) Client Feedback
After each audit a client feedback questionnaire is issued for the auditee to obtain their
views on the different aspects of the audit they have received. 93% of the feedback that
we received from clients was positive.

Page 37

INTERNAL AUDIT

As part of the feedback process the auditees are invited to give comments and below is
a sample of some of the comments received:The audit process was good throughout- can’t think of any improvements.
The audit has been helpful to give clear steer to the service in relation to the next stage
of the controcc project. I have no recommendations for further improvement.
The auditor was very professional, took her time to understand the work we do and
continually asked questions that were relevant. I personally found the whole experience
very good.
The audit was definitely a worthwhile exercise. It identified some areas for improvement
in terms of financial management and record keeping.
b) Timeliness of Reporting
The timeliness of issuing draft and final reports is important as it allows the audit clients
the earliest opportunity to action report recommendations and forms part of Internal
Audit’s performance indicators. During the year 76% of reports were issued within three
weeks of finishing on site, which is just below the target of 80%. 89% of final reports
were issued within a week of agreement with management, which is just below the
target of 90% that was only missed due to technical problems with MK Insight in the first
half of the year, which have now been addressed.
c) Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards Internal Audit has developed
and maintains a Quality Assurance Improvement Plan (QAIP). The QAIP establishes
and maintains best practice and drives continual improvement.
Improvement
developments that Internal Audit has progressed in 2019/20 include:

2.17



The Head of Internal Audit no longer has responsibility for Information Governance



The Computer audit resourcing gap that has existed for two years has now been
filled. Bradford Council is to enter into a 3 year contract with Salford Council for
the provision of Computer Internal Audit services. The contract will be for 60 days
per annum over three years from 1/10/19 to 30/9/22.



The position of Internal Audit Graduate Trainee has been recruited to.



Internal Audit Training and Development draft plan has been produced.

Training and Development
To support the competency requirements of the PSIAS as well as personal and
professional advancement all staff are encouraged to undertake training and
development opportunities. During 2019/20 staff took part in a variety of training days,
evening events and lunchtime webinars provided in-house and by the professional
bodies (e.g. CIPFA, IIA and CIMA). Topics ranged from personal development (e.g.
change management), through council service knowledge (e.g. power BI) to professional
update (e.g. crowd funding, cyber security, data analytics). In addition, five members of
staff attended the CIPFA NW Weekend School, which included a diverse range of
training and information sessions, as well as an opportunity for team building and
networking with audit colleagues from across the North of England.

Page 38

INTERNAL AUDIT

2.18

Direct Payments
At the July 31 2019 Governance and Audit Committee it was agreed that a report solely
on the significant concerns relating to Direct Payments be reported to the Corporate
Management Team as soon as possible. A report on the Direct Payments Improvement
Plan was agreed by CMT on the 13th November 2019 which included case prioritisation
based on the time since the last audit and the value of the weekly payment. Of the 86
high priority cases, 64 had so far been finished and the rest timetabled to be completed
in the next two weeks. It was envisaged that it would take a year to address the backlog
on the lower risk cases. It was agreed that Internal Audit would review the situation in six
months to determine the level of progress and report back to CMT. Due to Covid 19,
Internal Audit have not been able to review the level of progress and report back to CMT.

2.19

Covid 19 Response
During the current Covid Crisis Internal Audit resources have been used to support
Revenues in the process design of Business Grants and contacting businesses, ,
advising Procurement on how to deliver supplier relief and giving support to
Accountancy. Due to the timing of the emergency the impact in 2019/20 was limited to
the end of the financial year, though the consequences for 2020/21 will be significantly
greater.

3.

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION

3.1

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
Standard 2450 of the PSIAS requires Internal Audit to state within the Internal Audit
Annual Report, the annual internal audit opinion which “must conclude on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk
management and control”. This is also used, as evidence, to support the “Annual
Governance Statement.” The opinion is shown in 3.2 below.

3.2

Audit Opinion
From the work undertaken by Internal Audit throughout the year and taking into account
other internal and external assurance processes the overall internal control environment
risk management and governance framework of the Council is effective.

Page 39

INTERNAL AUDIT

Appendix A
Details of the Audit Reports Issued in 2019/20 by Audit Type
Audit
Category
Computer
Audit
Computer
Audit
Fundmental
Systems
Fundmental
Systems
Fundmental
Systems
Fundamental
Systems
Fundmental
Systems
Fundamental
Systems
Fundamental
Systems
Fundamental
Systems
Fundmental
Systems
Fundamental
Systems
Fundamental
Systems
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate

Client

Opinion

Title

Final
Report
Issue Date

Corporate Resources

Computer Audit Needs Assessment

25/07/2019

Corporate Resources

N/A
Limited
Assurance

31/03/2020

Corporate Resources

Partially Effective

Corporate Resources

Excellent

Corporate Resources

Good

Physical Environment and Security
Accounts Receivable Enforcement
Refunds & Write offs
Certification of Payroll
Contributions 2018/19
Compliance with Corporate
Contracts & Frameworks

Corporate Resources

N/A

Concerns Relating to Accounting
for VAT on Property Transactions

Corporate Resources

Excellent

Corporate Resources

Partially Effective

Dept of Place

Good

Corporate Resources

N/A

Childrens Services

Partially Effective

Corporate Resources

02/07/2019
14/05/2019
02/09/2019
24/09/2019
27/08/2019

N/A

Discretionary Housing Payments
Flexitime/Time recording Council
Wide
Keighley Road Extra Care &
Residential Care Capital Scheme
Review
Mortuary Drivers Overtime
Calculation
Requisitioning, Ordering &
Receipting
Review of a Recruitment Process
Within the Department of Health
and Wellbeing

Corporate Resources

Excellent

Starters & Leavers (Schools)

03/02/2020

Childrens Services

Good

29/05/2019

Childrens Services

Good

Childrens Services

Good

PE & Sport Grant 2018/19
Troubled Families (Families First)
Funding 2019/20
Troubled Families (Families First)
Funding 2019/20

Childrens Services

Good

Troubled Families (Families First)
Funding 2019/20 - claim 3

Childrens Services

Good

Dept of Place

Excellent

Troubled Families (Families First)
Funding 2019/20 - claim 4
Bradford Interchange Access
Improvement Grant

Dept of Place

Excellent

Cycle City Ambition Grant 2018/19

25/06/2019

Dept of Place

Excellent

Disabled Facilities Grant 2018-19

24/07/2019

Dept of Place

Excellent

Dept of Place

Excellent

Local Authority Bus Subsidy Ring
Fenced (Revenue) Grant 2018/19
Local Highways Maintenance
Funding 2018/19

Page 40

18/03/2020
11/07/2019
10/02/2020
02/08/2019
23/09/2019

02/07/2019
08/10/2019
20/12/2019
31/03/2020
21/06/2019

17/09/2019
12/07/2019

INTERNAL AUDIT

Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate
Grants &
Certificate

Dept of Place

Excellent

Dept of Place

Excellent

Dept of Place

Excellent

Grants &
Certificate
Dept of Place
Risk
Management Corporate Resources
Risk
Management Corporate Resources

National Productivity Investment
Fund Grant 2018/19

12/07/2019
21/06/2019

Excellent

Pot Hole Funding 2018/19
West Yorkshire Plus Transport
Fund Grant 2018/19
West Yorkshire Combined
Authority Local Transport Block
Funding Grant 2018/19

Good

Corporate Risk Management

12/09/2019

Good

Departmental Risk Management

12/09/2019

21/06/2019

Risk
Management Health & Wellbeing

Good

Schools

Childrens Services

N/A

Schools
Schools
Schools
Schools
Schools

Childrens Services
Childrens Services
Childrens Services
Childrens Services
Childrens Services

N/A
Partially Effective
Good
Partially Effective
Partially Effective

Schools
Schools

Childrens Services
Childrens Services

N/A
Partially Effective

Schools
Schools

Childrens Services
Childrens Services

N/A
Good

Schools
Schools
Significant
Systems
Significant
Systems

Childrens Services
Childrens Services

N/A
Good

Schools Financial Value Standard
Training November 2019
Silsden Primary School
Sixth Form Funding 2018/19
Assurance Statement
Trinity All Saints CE Primary School

Chief Executive

Excellent

Ethical Governance (Members)

29/04/2019

Chief Executive

Good

04/10/2019

Childrens Services

Partially Effective

Partnership Governance
Controcc Financial Management
System - Post Implementation
Review

Dept of Place

Good

Bereavement Services Income

15/11/2019

Dept of Place

Good

Car Parking Income

18/03/2020

Health & Wellbeing

Partially Effective

Deferred Payment for Care

05/02/2020

WYPF

Chief Executive

Good

WYPF

Chief Executive

Partially Effective

WYPF

Chief Executive

Excellent

Significant
Systems
Significant
Systems
Significant
Systems
Significant
Systems

Strategic Risk Management - Adults
Safeguarding Incident
Analysis of Schools Financial Value
Standard Self Assessment Returns
2019
Anonymous Allegations Against the
Head Teacher at Peel Park Primary
School
Bankfoot Primary School
Burley Oaks Primary School
Frizinghall Primary School
Hanson School
In Control Internal Audit
Newsletter for Schools
Midland Road Nursery School

25/06/2019

Review of West Yorkshire Pension
Fund 2018/19 Accounts
West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Accuracy of Contributions
Recorded on Member Records
West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Admission of New Bodies

Page 41

27/02/2020
24/05/2019
21/05/2019
03/09/2019
09/03/2020
27/06/2019
08/01/2020
08/11/2019
01/05/2019
05/12/2019
14/01/2020
29/10/2019
24/07/2019

01/08/2019

11/07/2019
10/02/2020
07/02/2020

INTERNAL AUDIT

WYPF

Chief Executive

Excellent

WYPF

Chief Executive

Good

WYPF

Chief Executive

Good

WYPF

Chief Executive

Good

WYPF

Chief Executive

Partially Effective

West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Annual Benefit Statements
West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Information Governance and
General Data Protection Regulation
West Yorkshire Pension Fund New
Pensions and Lump Sums Normal
and Early Retirements
West Yorkshire Pension Fund New
Transfers In
West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Transfer of Data

WYPF

Chief Executive

Excellent

West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Treasury Management 2019/20

18/12/2019

West Yorkshire Pension Fund UK
and Overseas Equities 2019/20

09/03/2020

WYPF

Chief Executive

Excellent

WYPF

Chief Executive

Good

WYPF

Chief Executive

Good

WYPF

Chief Executive

Excellent

West Yorkshire Pension Fund UK
and Overseas Private Equities
West Yorkshire Pension Fund UK
and Overseas Unit Trusts (Property
and Other)
West Yorkshire Pension Fund UK
Fixed and Linked Public and
Corporate Bonds

Page 42

31/03/2020
08/05/2019
09/10/2019
15/10/2019
10/06/2019

13/06/2019
03/03/2020
06/09/2019

INTERNAL AUDIT

Appendix B
Amendments to the 2019/20 Audit Plan
Below is a list of audits that were added or deleted from the 2019/20 Audit Plan over and
above those that were reported to GAC in the Internal Audit Monitoring Report on 28
November 2019. Where an audit was removed from the Plan a reason has been given as to
why this was.
Also shown, in the final column, is a list of 2019/20 planned audits that were ongoing as at
31.3.20.
Additional
unplanned
audit work
commenced /
done in 2019/20
Changes to the
Cash Collection
& Delivery

Planned audit work
proposed not
doing in 2019/20

Reason

2019/20 Planned Audits Ongoing as
at 31.3.20

Miscellaneous
Payments

Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints.

Payment of
Feeder Files

Review of
Drainage
Contract Award
Calculation of
Mortuary Drivers
Overtime

Performance
Management

Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints.
Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints.

Final Accounts
Review

Covid 19
Business Grants

Travel Assistance

Third Party
Payments

Covid19 Business
Grants

Vulnerability
Management

Health & Wellbeing
Departmental Risk
Management

Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints.
Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints.

Procurement
Processes
(Quotes,Tenders,,
Contract Award)

Childrens’
Safeguarding
Incident (Strategic
Risk)

Waste Management

Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints.

Out of Authority
Placements

Vulnerability
Management

Information Security
Strategic Risk

Prioritised Trade
Refuse and Recycling
Income audit due to
resource constraints.
Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints. Deferred
until 2020/21
Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints.

Continuing
Healthcare

Ley Top Primary
School

Council Wide
GDPR

Wibsey Primary
School

Fostering

Not priority audit. Not
done due to resource
constraints..

Post 16
Placements

Custodial
Procurement and
Transfer
of
Custodial
Arrangements
GLIL

Education
Attendance Traded
Service

Capital Schemes

Better Care Fund

Bank Reconciliation /
Unallocated Cash

Flexitime/Timerecording by
Departments

Changes to the
Cash Collection &
Delivery
Health & Safety

Page 43

Review of
Drainage
Maintenance
Contract Award
Regeneration
Grants/Loans/Bus
iness Rates Relief
Trade Refuse and
Recycling Income

Supplier
Maintenance
Agency Spend

INTERNAL AUDIT

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7/

Report of the Director West Yorkshire Pension Fund to
the meeting of Governance and Audit Committee to be
held on 17 September 20

K
Subject:
Minutes of West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) Local Pension Board meeting held
24 March 2020 and 23 June 2020

Summary statement:
The role of the Pension Board, as defined by sections 5(1) and (2) of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 is to assist the Council as Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective
and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS.
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (the Council), as Scheme Manager, as
defined under section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, has delegated legal and
strategic responsibility for West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) to the Governance and
Audit Committee.
The minutes of the WYPF Pension Board meeting are to be submitted to this committee.

Rodney Barton
Director

Portfolio:
Leader of Council & Strategic Regeneration

Report Contact: Caroline Blackburn
Phone: (01274) 434523
E-mail: caroline.blackburn@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:
[Insert where appropriate]

Page 45

1.

SUMMARY

 The Council’s Financial Regulations require the minutes of meeting of WYPF Local
Pension Board to be submitted to this committee.
2.

APPENDICES




Appendix A - Minutes of WYPF Local Pension Board 24 March 2020
Appendix B - Minutes of WYPF Local Pension Board 23 June 2020.

Page 46

Report of the Director West Yorkshire Pension Fund to
the meeting of Governance and Audit Committee to be
held on 17 September 20

K
Subject:
Minutes of West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) Local Pension Board meeting held
24 March 2020 and 23 June 2020

Summary statement:
The role of the Pension Board, as defined by sections 5(1) and (2) of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 is to assist the Council as Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective
and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS.
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (the Council), as Scheme Manager, as
defined under section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, has delegated legal and
strategic responsibility for West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) to the Governance and
Audit Committee.
The minutes of the WYPF Pension Board meeting are to be submitted to this committee.

Rodney Barton
Director

Portfolio:
Leader of Council & Strategic Regeneration

Report Contact: Caroline Blackburn
Phone: (01274) 434523
E-mail: caroline.blackburn@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:
[Insert where appropriate]

Page 47

1.

SUMMARY

 The Council’s Financial Regulations require the minutes of meeting of WYPF Local
Pension Board to be submitted to this committee.
2.

APPENDICES




Appendix A - Minutes of WYPF Local Pension Board 24 March 2020
Appendix B - Minutes of WYPF Local Pension Board 23 June 2020.

Page 48

Minutes of a meeting of the West Yorkshire Pension
Fund Pension Board held on Tuesday, 24 March 2020
Commenced
Concluded

10.35 am
11.15 am

Present – Members
Employer Representatives
Councillor S Lal (Chair) – Bradford
Councillor D Jenkins– Leeds
Ms R Manning - Employer

Member Representatives
Mr M Binks – Unison
Mr C Sykes – Unison
Mr M Morris - Unite

Apologies: Councillor Martyn Johnson and Gary Nesbitt
Councillor Lal in the Chair
34.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
All those present who were members or beneficiaries of the West Yorkshire
Pension Fund disclosed, in the interests of transparency, an interest in all relevant
business under consideration.
Action: City Solicitor

35.

MINUTES
Resolved –
That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2019 be signed as a
correct record.

36.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict
documents.

37.

MINUTES OF THE WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND JOINT ADVISORY
GROUP (JAG) 30 JANUARY 2020
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “X”)
reminded Members that the role of The Pension Board, as defined by sections
5(1) and (2) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 was to assist the Council as
Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and

27

Page 49

administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) including
securing compliance with the LGPS regulations and any other legislation relating
to the governance and administration of the LGPS; securing compliance with the
requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator; and
any other such matters as the LGPS regulations may specify.
The Minutes of meeting of WYPF Joint Advisory Group were submitted to the
Pension Board to enable the Board to ensure effective and efficient governance
and administration of the LGPS.
It was acknowledged that Members were to be updated on budget issues,
contained in the minutes, during the presentation on the Funding Strategy
Statement later in the meeting. It was agreed that the Director, West Yorkshire
Pension Fund, would respond in detail during discussions on that item.
Resolved –
That the minutes of the WYPF JAG meeting held on 30 January 2020 be
noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
38.

2019 ACTUARIAL VALUATION AND CONSULTATION ON THE FUNDING
STRATEGY STATEMENT
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (Document “Y”)
explained that the next triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund was being
prepared based on the situation at 31 March 2019, and would determine the level
of employers’ contributions from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023.
It was confirmed that that at 31 March 2020 WYPF was 106% funded compared
to the situation at 31 March 2016 when it was 94% funded. As a result, each of
the five district councils saw a very slight reduction in their employer contributions
rate which had been welcomed.
The report detailed that a consultation had been undertaken on the Funding
Strategy Statement (FSS) according to the regulations and the main changes to
the FSS at that time were to bring into the statement the assumptions that had
been used at the valuation. All stakeholders had been consulted on the FSS and
no changes had been made. The FSS had been taken to the Joint Advisory
Group in January 2020 where it was approved.
Resolved –
That the report be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

39.

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY 2020/21
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “Z”)
explained that, as part compliance with the LGPS Regulations 2013, WYPF
28

Page 50

prepare a written statement of the authority’s policies in relation to such matters
as it considers appropriate in relation to the levels of performance which the
employers and WYPF are expected to achieve.
In accordance with LGPS regulations the Pension Administration Strategy was
reviewed each year, and particularly if there were any new regulations and
revisions to working practices. It outlined processes and procedures that the fund
worked towards and highlighted the employers’ responsibilities and obligations
and also those of administering authorities. The strategy related to all three
LGPS funds and included the London Borough of Hounslow.
The Pensions Administration Strategy was appended to Document “Z”.
Resolved –
That the report be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
40.

COMMUNICATIONS POLICY 2020/21
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, presented Document “AA” which
reported that as part compliance with the LGPS Regulations 2013 WYPF prepare,
maintain and publish a written statement setting out its policy concerning
communications with:a)
b)
c)
d)

Members
Representatives of Members
Prospective Members
Scheme Employers

WYPF’s Communication Policy was updated each year to reflect the engagement
planned with the various stakeholders and the form of that engagement. It was
explained that the policy would need to be reviewed again in light of the COVID19 situation and the need to consider how services would be delivered.
The report revealed that a key element of the strategy was employee training and
it was explained that, due to the current social distancing requirements,
alternative methods to face to face training were being developed and would be
factored into the strategy. It was reported that the Member Portal would be one of
the main communication channels with members and that the current year would
be the last year that Annual Benefit Statements would be issued in paper format.
In future those statements and newsletters would be provided via the Member
Portal.
Members were advised that the Contact Centre was currently closed to personal
visitors and all members were encouraged to raise enquiries by telephone.
The Communications Policy was appended to Document ”AA”.

29

Page 51

Resolved –
That the Pension Communication Policy, appended to Document “AA”,
report be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
41.

REGISTER OF BREACHES OF LAW
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, presented a report
(Document “AB”) which informed Members that, in accordance with the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013, from April 2015 all Public Service
Pension Schemes come under the remit of the Pensions Regulator.
Section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 (the Act) imposed a requirement to report a
matter to the Pensions Regulator as soon as it was reasonably
practicable where that person had reason to believe that:
(a) A legal duty relating to the administration of the scheme has not been or is
not being complied with, and
(b) The failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to The Pensions
Regulator in the exercise of any of its functions.
A register of any Breaches of Law was, therefore, maintained in accordance with
the Pensions Regulators’ requirements and WYPF Breaches Procedure. It was
acknowledged that the register was being discussed at the meeting to be held at
the conclusion of the current meeting and it was agreed that the updated version
could be considered in more detail at that time.
Resolved –
That the entries on the Register of Breaches of Law be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

42.

WYPF DATA IMPROVEMENT PLAN
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF),
Document AC”, informed members that The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) Code of
Practice 14 and The Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping & Miscellaneous
Amendments) Regulations 2014 set out the requirements for public sector
pension funds to maintain comprehensive and accurate data on their members
and their members’ pension contributions.
The report revealed the data scores at November 2019 and plans to improve that
data and to prioritise and challenge. It was explained that the data was reviewed
on a quarterly basis and it was aimed to demonstrate that improvements were
being made.

30

Page 52

Resolved –
That the report be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
43.

WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (Document “AD”)
informed members that West Yorkshire Pension Fund maintained a Risk Register
which contained 44 risks that had been identified and framed into scenarios. The
risks had been rated and 21 of these were above their acceptable tolerance level
and 23 were below the tolerance line.
A presentation on five risks from the 21 above their tolerance level identified in
Document “AD” was provided so that members could ensure that adequate
Management Action Plans were in place to monitor those risks.
Resolved –
That the five risks and action plans to manage and mitigate those risks,
contained in Document “AD” be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

44.

WYPF PENSION BOARD WORK PLAN
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “AE”)
reminded Members that the role of the Pension Board, as defined by sections
5(1) and (2) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 was to assist the Council as
Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and
administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) including
securing compliance with the LGPS regulations and any other legislation relating
to the governance and administration of the LGPS; securing compliance with the
requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator; and
any other such matters as the LGPS regulations may specify.
At item that had been raised by Members at the meeting was a request for clarity
over what agenda items at each meeting would be and how they could be aware
of items which would be considered on a regular basis. In response a Work Plan
had been developed and was appended to Document “AE””.
Member were reminded that additional reports could be requested by Members of
the Pension Board in addition to the regular items. Those reports could be
requested by Members of the Pension Board at a preceding meeting or could be
requested to be included on the agenda at the next meeting by contacting the
Technical and Development Manager.

31

Page 53

Resolved –
That the work plan of regular reports appended to Document “AE” be
approved.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
45.

TRAINING, CONFERENCES AND SEMINARS
Members were reminded that training to understand their responsibilities and the
issues they will be dealing with was a very high priority.
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “AF”)
informed Members of training courses, conferences and seminars which may be
of assistance.
It was acknowledged that due to the current COVID-19 pandemic training was
being delivered very differently and as the report had been prepared on the
situation in March 2020 the conferences; training and seminars may no longer be
available.
No resolution was passed on this item.

46.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
Resolved –
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the
item relating to minutes of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Investment
Advisory Panel meetings held on 7 November 2019 and 30 January 2020
because information would be disclosed which is considered to be exempt
information within paragraph 3 (Financial or Business Affairs) of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).
It is considered that, in all the circumstances, the public interest in
maintaining this exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this
information as it is in the overriding interest of proper administration that
Members are made aware of the financial implications of any decision
without prejudicing the financial position of the West Yorkshire Pension
Fund.

47.

MINUTES OF THE WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND INVESTMENT
ADVISORY PANEL 7 NOVEMBER 2019 AND 30 JANUARY 2020
Resolved –
That the Not for Publication minutes of the Investment Advisory Panel on 7
November 2019 and 30 January 2020 contained in Not for Publication
Document “AG” be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

32

Page 54

48.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
Resolved –
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the
item relating to Cyber Security because information would be disclosed
which is considered to be exempt information within paragraph 3 (Financial
or Business Affairs) of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended).
It is considered that, in all the circumstances, the public interest in
maintaining this exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this
information as it is in the overriding interest of proper administration that
Members are made aware of the business implications of any decision
without prejudicing the business position of the West Yorkshire Pension
Fund.

49.

CYBER SECURITY
Resolved –
That Not for Publication Document “AH” be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

Chair

Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a correct record at the next meeting
of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Pension Board.

THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

33

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of a meeting of the West Yorkshire Pension
Fund Pension Board held on Tuesday, 23 June 2020 in
Commenced
Concluded

11.15 am
12.05 pm

Present –
Employer Representatives
Councillor S Lal (Chair) – Bradford
Councillor D Jenkins– Leeds
Ms R Manning - Employer

Member Representatives
Mr M Binks – Unison
Mr C Sykes – Unison
Mr M Morris - Unite

Apologies: Councillor Martyn Johnson and Gary Nesbitt
Councillor Lal in the Chair
1.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
All those present who were members or beneficiaries of the West Yorkshire
Pension Fund disclosed, in the interests of transparency, an interest in all relevant
business under consideration.
Action: City Solicitor

2.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict
documents.

3.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON WYPF PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
(Document “A”) informed Members of the impact of COVID-19 on West
Yorkshire Pension Fund’s (WYPF) pension’s administration.
It was explained that following the advice from Government on 23 March 2020
that everyone should stay at home the Fund’s business continuity plan had been
put into operation to ensure that there was no disruption to service for the
400,000 members and that all pensions were paid.
WYPF had made the decision that staff were key workers and they were asked to
attend work if they were unable to work from home. Negotiations with Bradford
Council’s IT service had ensured that within a couple of weeks the majority of
staff were working remotely.

1

Page 57

Arrangements had been made to ensure that staff only occasionally had to visit
the office and, for example, one person would do printing or other office based
duties for their colleagues working from home.
The report revealed that, in line with The Pension Regulator’s advice, the focus of
service delivery was on payment of benefits; employer contributions; minimising
the risk of scams and supporting good decision making.
Payroll systems were tested to ensure they could be operated remotely and a
decision was made that daily payments would be moved to a weekly payroll
system. No issues appeared to have been experienced by beneficiaries.
Contact centre operators were fully briefed on current operations and were able to
advise members accordingly.
It was explained that The Pension Regulator had extended the deadline for the
receipt of Annual Benefit Statements and the Fund was confident that they would
not breach that requirement.
A frequently asked questions sheet for LGPS administrators on COVID-19 had
been prepared and was appended to the report for information.
Following a very detailed presentation it was questioned if being furloughed would
be a detriment to members and would they lose contributions. In response it was
explained that it had been stipulated that employees of Local Government, as a
public body, would not furloughed. Other employees would receive their pensions
based on the contributions of their employer. There had been some requests
from employers to defer their payments but these had been very few.
It was questioned if, due to changes in investment markets, AVC valuations would
be honoured. In response it was believed that valuations were not guaranteed for
a specific time period but it was agreed to investigate and report back on that
issue.
A Member questioned the long term implications of staff working from home and
he was advised that a survey was being prepared to ascertain the thoughts and
feelings of staff on their current working arrangements. As some presence was
required in the office it was not believed that the level of remote working would be
maintained in its totality, however, the benefits of working from home were
acknowledged and it was believed that some element of remote working would be
continued.
Resolved –
That the report be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

2

Page 58

4.

FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT CONSULTATION
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund,
(Document “B”) updated Members on the recent consultation on the Funding
Strategy to incorporate the Fund’s approach to the refund of exit credits and to
allow new employer admissions to be on a pass through basis.
It was confirmed that the consultation, which had been shared with the Pension
Board, had closed at the end of May. A copy of the draft Funding Strategy
Statement was appended to the report. Additional comments were requested at
the meeting or could be provided to officers.
Members were advised that the Joint Advisory Group would consider the draft
amendments to the FSS and responses to the consultation at its meeting in July
2020.
Resolved –
That the report be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

5.

REGISTER OF BREACHES OF LAW
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, presented a report
(Document “C”) which informed Members that, in accordance with the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013, from April 2015 all Public Service
Pension Schemes came under the remit of the Pensions Regulator.
Section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 (the Act) imposed a requirement to report a
matter to the Pensions Regulator as soon as it was reasonably
practicable where that person had reason to believe that:
1. A legal duty relating to the administration of the scheme had not been or
was not being complied with, and
2. The failure to comply was likely to be of material significance to The
Pensions Regulator in the exercise of any of its functions.
A register of any Breaches of Law was, therefore, maintained in accordance with
the Pensions Regulator’s requirements and WYPF Breaches Procedure.
The report revealed that the entries on the Register related to the late payment of
contributions and Annual Benefit Statements which had not been issued by 31
August 2019.
It was confirmed 99.6% of Annual Benefit Statements had been issued on time.
The majority of outstanding payments from employers had been due to
operational issues i.e. the officer had been absent from work and not able to pay.
Payments had been chased up and all had been received. Assurances were
3

Page 59

provided that employers were closely monitored. Records of each employer who
failed to make payments were maintained along with details of the number of late
payments.
It was explained that some requests to delay deficit payments had been received
but these were very few and were not felt to be a major issue.
Resolved –
That the entries on the Register of Breaches of Law be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
6.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME UPDATES AND OVERRIDING
PENSIONS LEGISLATION
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “D”)
updated the Local Pension Board on changes to the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) 2014 and provided information on associated matters.
Members were reminded that since the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) was introduced there had been a number of consultations on proposed
changes to the LGPS following which amendment regulations had been issued.
The report provided an update on the following:

Consultation on Fair Deal – strengthening pension protection;



Consultation on the Local Valuation cycle and the management of
employer risk;



The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2020;



McCloud and variation guidance;



Consultation on restricting exit payments;



Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Report;



Third Tier employers;



LGPS Annual Report 2019.

Other issues discussed included updates to the Money and Pensions Service
dashboard; the reintroduction of the Pensions Schemes Bill and changes to
tapered annual allowances and lifetime allowances following the Spring Budget in
March 2020.
Resolved –
That the report be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
4

Page 60

7.

SERVICE BUDGETS
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “E”)
reminded Members that, in accordance with Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations, costs of managing LGPS pension funds must be charged to pension
fund accounts and not to local authorities’ general fund accounts.
It was confirmed that the cost of services reported would be charged to WYPF
accounts. The budgets outlined in the report would deliver pension administration
services to over 430,000 pension scheme members, made up of 293,000 WYPF
and 126,000 shared service partner members. The fund supported over 800
active employers. The same resource would be used to manage over £13bn
WYPF investment assets.
It was reported that in order to maintain WYPF’s cost performance a number of
cost savings activities, to manage cost down to £43 per member, had been
considered. The outcome of that work was detailed in Document “E” and had
resulted in the budget of £14.85m which was presented to the WYPF Joint
Advisory Group. Savings activities had reduced printing costs and increased the
use of digital technology to increase capacity, service efficiency and reduce costs.
The report revealed that the latest government data for 2018/19 showed WYPF
as having the lowest total cost at £34.46. The 2nd lowest LGPS fund was
Nottinghamshire at £65.91. The latest WYPF project cost per member of £41.40
would still be £24 below Nottinghamshire (39% cheaper than Nottinghamshire).
Based on that analysis WYPF would likely retain the 1st spot in 2019/20 and
2020/21.
It was explained that key cost pressures included the need to revise investment
strategies and the expansion of shared services to provide additional resources.
Investments in digital services had been made to prepare for the future and had
included enhanced technology to facilitate mobile and agile work practices. It
was predicted that cost pressures would increase and confirmed that they would
be reviewed shortly.
Resolved 1. That the total service budget of £14.85m approved for 2020/21 by the Joint Advisory
Group in January 2020 be noted.
2. That the total pension cost per member of £34.46 for 2018/19 (2017/18 £36.45)
making WYPF the lowest cost LGPS scheme for 2018/19 be noted.

ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund

8.

TRAINING, CONFERENCES AND SEMINARS
Members were reminded that training to understand their responsibilities and the
issues they would deal with was a very high priority. The report of the Director,
5

Page 61

West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “F”) detailed a number of training
courses, conferences and seminars which may be of assistance.
Concerns were raised about the about the benefits of the Pensions Regulator
Toolkit online training course. A Member explained that he had found other
training resources, including face to face sessions and seminars, very useful but
felt that the Toolkit, with multiple choice questions, did not help him identify his
personal competences and areas for improvement. He had completed the course
online which did not allow discussions with others which he felt enhanced
knowledge and understanding.
Assurances were provided that support was always available from WYPF officers
who were happy to assist and courses and seminars would be facilitated. It was
agreed that the Toolkit could be useful to provide an indication of the Pension
Regulator’s knowledge requirements which could be enhanced through additional
training methods.
No resolution was passed on this item.
9.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
Resolved –
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the
Not for Publication Appendix to Document “G” relating to the notes of a
West Yorkshire Pension Fund Investment Advisory Panel briefing meeting
held on 30 April 2020 because information would be disclosed which was
considered to be exempt information within paragraph 3 (Financial or
Business Affairs) of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended).
It was considered that, in all the circumstances, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the
information as it was in the overriding interest of proper administration that
Members were made aware of the financial implications of any decision
without prejudicing the financial position of the West Yorkshire Pension
Fund.

10.

NOTES OF A BRIEFING MEETING OF THE WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION
FUND INVESTMENT ADVISORY PANEL ON 30 APRIL 2020
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “G –
containing a Not Publication Appendix) reminded Members that the role of the
Pension Board, as defined by sections 5(1) and (2) of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 was to assist the Council as Scheme Manager in ensuring the
effective and efficient governance and administration of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) including securing compliance with the LGPS
regulations and any other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the LGPS; securing compliance with the requirements imposed
in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator; and any other such matters as
the LGPS regulations may specify.

6

Page 62

Members were advised that the Investment Advisory Panel (IAP) scheduled for
21 April 2020 had been cancelled due to COVID-19. An informal meeting had
been held and was attended by the Chair and Deputy Chair. The Not for
Publication notes of that meeting were appended to Document “G”. The notes
were submitted to the Pension Board to enable the Board to ensure effective and
efficient governance and administration of the LGPS.

Resolved –
1. That it be noted that the Investment Advisory Panel meeting of 21
April 2020 was cancelled.
2. That the Not for Publication notes of a briefing meeting attended by
the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Investment Advisory Panel on 30
April 2020, appended to Document “G”, be noted.
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
11.

CHAIR'S NOTE
It was noted that this was the last meeting of the Unite Member Representative
Mark Morris.
Mark was thanked for his very valuable contribution to the Pension Board and
wished well for the future.

Chair

Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a correct record at the next meeting
of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Pension Board.
THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

7

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

